
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

WESTERN DIVISION 

 
Robert Scheffler, 

 

And 

 

Jeannine Scheffler, 

 

And 

 

Brady Scheffler, 

 

And 

 

John Doe Scheffler, 

 

            Plaintiffs, 

  

v. 

 

Bennett Law, PLLC 

 

 Defendant. 

Case No. 

 

  

 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 

UNDER THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION 

PRACTICES ACT, THE ILLINOIS 

CONSUMER FRAUD AND DECEPTIVE 

BUSINESS PRACTICES ACT, AND 

OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF 

 

 

JURY DEMAND ENDORSED HEREIN 

  

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiffs Robert Scheffler (“Robert”), Jeannine Scheffler (“Jeannine”), Brady Scheffler 

(“Brady”) and John Scheffler (“John”)  are natural persons who resided in Byron, Illinois at 

all times relevant to this action. 

2. Bennett Law, PLLC (“BLP”) is a Utah corporation that maintained its principal place of 

business in South Jordan, Utah at all times relevant to this action. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331, this Court has federal question jurisdiction over this matter as it 

arises under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA”), 15 U.S.C. §1692 et seq. 
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4. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1367(a), this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s 

Illinois claims under the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 

ILCS 505 et seq., (“ICFBDPA”) because they share a common nucleus of operative fact with 

Plaintiff’s claims under the FDCPA.      

5. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b), venue is proper because a substantial part of the events 

giving rise to this claim occurred in this judicial district. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

6. At all times relevant to this action, Defendant collected consumer debts. 

7. Defendant regularly uses instrumentalities of interstate commerce and the mails to collect 

consumer debts owed or due or asserted to be owed or due another. 

8. The principal source of Defendant’s revenue is debt collection. 

9. Defendant is a "debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(6). 

10. As described, infra, Defendant contacted Robert, Jeannine, Brady and John to collect a debt 

that was incurred primarily for personal, family, or household purposes. 

11. This alleged obligation is a “debt” as defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(5). 

12.  Robert, Jeannine, Brady and John are “consumers” as defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(3). 

13. On or around February 21, 2013, BLP spoke with John on John’s personal cell phone.  

14. During this conversation BLP identified itself as a debt collector collecting on Brady’s debt. 

15. John is Brady’s younger brother. 

16. BLP disclosed to John that a debt was allegedly owed and they were trying to collect. 

17. John, being a minor child, was confused by the conversation and handed the phone to 

Jeannine. 

18. Jeannine is John and Brady’s mother. 
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19. During this conversation BLP identified itself as a debt collector collecting on Brady’s debt. 

20. The alleged debt was for a gym membership that Brady had while he was in school in Utah. 

21. BLP disclosed Brady’s alleged debt to Jeannine. 

22. Jeannine informed BLP that they were speaking on John’s phone and that he was not 

responsible for the alleged debt.   

23. During this conversation Jeannine identified herself as John and Brady’s mother to BLP. 

24. During this conversation Jeannine told BLP that they were talking on John’s phone, that he 

was not associated with the debt, and they should not be calling that phone, speaking or 

speaking with John since the debt was allegedly Brady’s. 

25. To prevent her minor son from being harassed, she gave BLP her personal cellular phone 

number and identified it to BLP as such. 

26. BLP called Jeannine’s personal cellular phone and attempted to collect on the alleged debt 

and in doing so a debt to Jeannine. 

27. Jeannine disputed the amount of the debt as “ridiculous” and informed BLP that she had no 

knowledge of the debt as her son had incurred it while he was away at school in Utah. 

28. Jeannine gave BLP Robert’s personal cellular phone number. 

29. Robert is Jeannine’s husband as well as John and Brady’s father. 

30. BLP called Robert’s personal cellular phone on or around the evening of February 13, 2013.   

31. During this conversation BLP identified itself as a debt collector collecting on Brady’s debt. 

32. BLP disclosed Brady’s alleged debt to Robert. 

33. Robert disputed that there was any debt owed, as the gym had implied to Brady he would be 

let out of his membership because he would be moving out of state. 
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34. BLP continued to insist that the debt was owed and that payments needed to be made thus 

continuing to disclose the debt in question. 

35. Robert and BLP did not reach any resolution to Brady’s debt, and the call was terminated. 

36. BLP has placed automated phone calls to Jeannine’s personal cellular phone nine times since 

their initial communication on February 21, 2013. 

37. During each call BLP would leave an automated voice mail on Jeannine’s phone stating their 

identity, and that they were attempting to collect a debt, and a case number referencing 

Brady’s account with them. 

38. BLP caused Brady emotional distress. 

39. BLP caused John emotional distress. 

40. BLP caused Jeannine emotional distress. 

41. BLP caused Robert emotional distress. 

42. Defendant attempted to collect a debt from Brady. 

43. Defendant’s collection techniques caused significant distress in the Plaintiff’s family unit. 

44.  Defendant violated the FDCPA. 

45. Defendant engaged in deceptive business practices. 

COUNT ONE 

Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

46. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 

47. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. §1692c(b) by communicating with a third party in connection 

with the collection of the debt without Plaintiff’s consent. 
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COUNT TWO 

Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

48. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 

49. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. §1692d by engaging in conduct the natural consequence of 

which is to harass, oppress, or abuse Plaintiff in connection with the collection of the debt. 

COUNT THREE 

Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

50. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 

51. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. §1692e by using false, deceptive, or misleading representations 

or means in connection with the collection of the debt.  

COUNT FOUR 

Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

52. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 

53. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. §1692f by using unfair or unconscionable means to collect the 

debt. 

COUNT FIVE 

Violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 

54. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 

55. Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. §1692g by failing to send Plaintiffs the required notice within 

five days of Defendant’s initial communication with Plaintiff. 

COUNT SIX 

Violation of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Businesses Practices Act 

56. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the preceding allegations as if specifically stated herein. 
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57. Defendant violated 815 ILCS 505/2 by using fraud, false pretense, false promise, 

misrepresentation or the concealment, suppression or omission of any material fact in the 

conduct of any trade or commerce. 

JURY DEMAND 

58. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

59. Plaintiffs pray for the following relief: 

a. Judgment against Defendant for actual damages, statutory damages, and costs and 

reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1692k in favor of all plaintiffs. 

b. Judgment against Defendants for actual damages, punitive damages, and 

injunctive relief pursuant to 815 ILCS 505/10a. 

c. For such other legal and/or equitable relief as the Court deems appropriate. 

 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 

Hyslip & Taylor, LLC LPA 

  

    

   By: /s/ Jeffrey S. Hyslip  

   One of Plaintiff’s Attorneys 

 

Date July 22, 2013 

 

Jeffrey S. Hyslip, Esq. 

Hyslip & Taylor, LLC LPA 

917 W. 18
th

 Street 

Suite 200 

Chicago, IL 60608 

312-380-6230 

jeffrey@lifetimedebtsolutions.com 
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